ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
April 7, 2011
9:02 a.m

VEVMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Wel echowski, Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan, Vice Chair
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Cathy G essel

VEVMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 117

"An Act relating to the allowable absence for active duty
service nenbers of the arnmed forces for purposes of permanent

fund dividend eligibility."
- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 7

Relating to awarding the Al aska Decoration of Honor to certain

menbers of the mlitary.
- MOVED HCR 7 OQUT OF COW TTEE

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 3(STA)
"An Act relating to issuance of driver's |licenses."”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 117

SHORT TITLE. PFD ALLOWABLE ABSENCE: M LI TARY
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI

03/30/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 30/ 11 (S) STA, FIN
04/ 07/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- Apri |

7, 2011



BILL: HB 3

SHORT TI TLE: REQUI REMENTS FOR DRI VER S LI CENSE

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN, HAWKER, CHENAULT, JOHNSON,
GATTO

01/ 18/ 11 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 18/ 11 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 18/ 11 (H STA, FIN

01/ 27/ 11 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 27/ 11 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 27/ 11 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 01/ 11 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 01/ 11 (H) Moved CSHB  3(STA) Qut of Committee

02/ 01/ 11 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 02/ 11 (H) STA RPT CS(STA) 3DP 4NR

02/ 02/ 11 (H DP: P.WLSON, KELLER, LYNN

02/ 02/ 11 (H) NR: JOHANSEN, GRUENBERG, SEATON,
PETERSEN

02/ 22/ 11 (H FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

02/ 22/ 11 (H) Moved CSHB  3(STA) Qut of Committee

02/ 22/ 11 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 23/ 11 (H FIN RPT CS(STA) 7DP 4NR

02/ 23/ 11 (H) DP:  FAIRCLOUGH, T.WLSON,  DOOGAN,
NEUMAN, COSTELLO, STOLTZE, THOVAS

02/ 23/ 11 (H) NR GARA, GUTTENBERG JOULE, EDGVON

02/ 28/ 11 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 28/ 11 (H) VERS| ON: CSHB 3( STA)

03/ 01/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 01/ 11 (S) STA, TRA

04/ 07/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HCR 7

SHORT TI TLE: DECORATI ON OF HONOR
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) SADDLER

02/ 23/ 11 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 23/ 11 (H) M.V

03/10/ 11 (H) M.V AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
03/10/11 (H) Moved Qut of Conmttee

03/10/ 11 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

03/11/11 (H) M.V RPT 4DP

03/11/11 (H) DP: GATTO, M LLER, THOWPSQON, SADDLER
03/ 29/ 11 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 29/ 11 (H) VERSI ON:  HCR 7

03/30/11 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 30/ 11 (S) STA

04/ 07/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 7, 2011



W TNESS REG STER

M CHAEL CAULFI ELD, Staff to Senator W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TION STATEMENT: Presented SB 117 on behalf of
W el echowski, the sponsor.

DEBORAH BI TNEY, Director

Per manent Fund Di vi si on

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 117.

CHRI S POAG, Assistant Attorney General

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Per manent Fund Di vi dend (PFD) Division

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 117.

TI KOT CROFQOT, representing hinself
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 117.

TRACY RCSS, representing her husband
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 117.

Rl C DAVI DGE

Al aska Veteran's Foundati on

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 117.

LI SA KI RSCH, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Services

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding SB 117.

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 3.

THOVAS REI KER, Staff to Representative Lynn
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, AK

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- Apri

Senat or

7, 2011



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 3 for Representative Lynn, the
sponsor.

KERRY HENNI NGS, Driver's Licensing Manager

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 3.

ROBI N BRONEN, Attorney

Al aska | mm gration Justice Project

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 3.

JOHN HI RST, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 3.

JASON BAUMETZ, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 3.

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive D rector

Anerican Cvil Liberties Union of Al aska

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 3.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 32 AM

CHAIR BI LL WELECHOWSKI called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Paskvan, G essel, Meyer, and Chair
W el echowski .

SB 117- PFD ALLOWABLE ABSENCE: M LI TARY

9:03: 05 AM

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI announced the first order of business would
be SB 117. This bill would enable Al askans who join the mlitary
and are deployed out of state to continue receiving Permanent
Fund Dividend <checks while serving in the arned forces.
Currently long-term Al askans who have -every intention of
returning to the state are denied their PFDs after ten years.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2011



CHAI R W ELECHOWNSKI asked for a notion to adopt the proposed,
version M conmittee substitute (CS)

SENATOR PASKVAN noved to adopt the proposed CS for SB 117,
| abel ed 27-LS0768\M as the working docunent.

CHAI R W ELECHOASKI obj ected for discussion purposes and asked
his staff to provide an overview of the bill.

9:04: 13 AM
M CHAEL CAULFI ELD, Staff to Senator Wel echowski, said that as
any Al askan knows, one of the great benefits of living in the

state is the yearly PFD paynent. Mst would agree that the PFD
should not be withheld fromthose with a legitimte reason to be
gone fromthe state with every intention of returning. Thus, the
state has exenptions for residents absent for reasons |ike
school, nedical treatnent, or mlitary service. These exenptions
have a sunset date of ten years, as nost people gone for that
long do not intend to return to Al aska. However, sonme |jobs
require people to be gone from the state for |onger than 10
years. One  of them 1is congressional servi ce. Al aska' s
congressional delegation has to live in Washington D.C. and the
statutes allow for them to receive PFDs past that ten-year
[imt.

Anot her job where Al askans nay not be able to return honme for
long periods of time is the mlitary. Menbers of the arned
forces can't choose where to be stationed, and if they nake a
career of the mlitary they may be gone for over ten years.
These brave nmen and wonen nake great sacrifices to protect us
all, and the least we can do is to nmake sure they still receive
their PFDs. Senate Bill 117 wll provide an exenption for
Al askan soldiers who are gone for over ten years, just |ike our
congressi onal del egati on.

MR. CAULFIELD then reviewed the changes in the CS. On page 2,
lines 1-5 require that the soldier receiving the PFD was
actually in the state for three years prior to joining the
mlitary, wunless gone for an allowable reason. Lines 6-11
provi de a severability clause.

9: 06: 07 AM
CHAIR WELECHOMNSKI noted there is a legal opinion on the
constitutionality of the bill.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2011



DEBORAH BITNEY, Director, Permanent Fund D vidend Division,
Department of Revenue (DOR), said she was available for
guesti ons.

CHAIR WELECHOANBKI said he has had several constituents raise
this issue with him Al askans who are depl oyed for |ong periods
of time have problens getting their PFD checks.

9:07:39 AM
SENATOR KOOKESH j oi ned the neeti ng.

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI asked how many conpl ai nts he's heard.

M5. BITNEY answered probably less than 30, but they were
extrenely | oud.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if nost were related to mlitary service.

M5. BITNEY answered yes, all were from mlitary nenbers. Mst
peopl e who are gone from the state for that length of tine are
mlitary.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if M. Bitney had any infornmation about
people within the mlitary who are absent nore than 10 years and
who do return to beconme pernmanent residents.

M5. BITNEY answered they are researching this question. Her
initial findings were that 78 people this year reside in Al aska
and at some point since 1990 had 10 years or nore of absences,
and at |east one of those years was for mlitary purposes. She
said being nore specific would require nore research.

9:10: 20 AM

CHRI S POAG Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law (DAL),
PFD Division, said there is a constitutional concern with this
bill. There's risk of an unequal protection challenge when a
class of residents is broken into new residents and |ong-term
residents. In Sands v. Roe, which involved welfare benefits for
California residents, new residents for the first year would
receive benefits from the state of origin, not from California.
The court said it was unconstitutional to create two classes of
residents and distribute benefits unequally.

An argunment could be nmade that this bill does sonething along
those lines. PFD allowable absences include up to 180 days so
long as the intent to return is maintained. There are 16 speci al
exceptions allowing for absences in excess of 180 days. There

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2011



has to be sone limt, so the legislature inposed a ten year cap
on allowabl e absences. It also created an exenption for nenbers
of Congress, their staff, and spouses.

9:14:12 AM
After ten years of service or longer, they are likely to return.
This bill would create another exenption but splits mlitary

al | owabl e absences into two classes. This raises a risk of a
challenge simlar to Zobel. DOL believes that the |egislature
sees this as a category of people who are likely to return to
the state. DOL would support a lawsuit if the law were to be
challenged. M. Poag warned that if there is a constitutiona
chall enge, the legislature should make clear that it doesn't
want the ten-year rule to go away.

CHAI R W ELECHOWEKI opened public testinony.

TI KOT CROFOOT said he originally left Alaska to attend the Nava
Acadeny and has been an active duty SEAL for ten years. He is
currently preparing for another deploynent to Afghanistan. Two
years ago he was denied his PDF, and has been denied ever since.
He believes that service nenbers and their famlies are no |ess
deserving than our congressional delegation. The PFD does
penal i ze Al aska service nenbers.

MR. CROFQOT said he lived in Al aska since age four, had unbroken
Al aska residency for 28 years, has voted in all elections and
has an Al aska driver's license. Alaska is listed as his hone of
record, so the mlitary will pay for himto return to Al aska
when he |eaves the service, but not to another state. Both his
parents have been Al askan residents since 1974. He owns property
in Alaska, and is part owner of a famly business in Al aska. He
met all PFD requirements for eligibility prior to mlitary
service. He net the requirenents for his first ten years of
mlitary service. Mlitary nenbers deserve the dividend even if
they are outside the state.

9:20: 55 AM

MR. CROFOOT said he has heard people say that mlitary nmenbers
are trying to mlk the system by trying to receive the dividend
when they have resided in Alaska for very little tinme. It
actually costs him nore to return to Al aska each year than he
receives from the dividend. He returns because Alaska is his
home. He urged the committee to support career mlitary nenbers
who intend to return to the state.

9:22: 04 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2011



CHAIR WELECHOWSKI said M. Crofoot was a big reason why the
bill was brought forward.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked when he expected to retire.

MR CROFOOT said he will be eligible after 20 vyears, but
regardl ess of when he retires, he will return to Al aska.

9:23:27 AM

TRACY ROSS said she was calling on behalf of her husband, Lt.
Colonel Brian Ross, who deployed to the Philippines and is
currently stationed in Ckinawa. Al askan residents who are career
mlitary deserve equal protection under the law and should be
allowed to receive PFDs despite extended absence. Brian was born
in Alaska in 1972, and left in 1990 to attend the Naval Acadeny.
For the last 18 years he has served around the world. He has
al ways been registered to vote in Alaska. Al his vehicles have
been titled, registered, and licensed in Alaska. He has
significant physical ties to Alaska; his parents and two
brothers live in Al aska. He owns cabins and |and near G enallen

Their famly has made dozens of trips to Alaska totaling over 80
days in the past five years.

M5. ROSS said her husband was first denied a PFD in 2008.
Nothing in his status had changed other than passing the
arbitrary ten year cap. He has filed a superior court judicia
review of his rejection. If he is not an Al askan resident, then
where is his home? H's hone of record and state of |egal
residence is the state the federal governnment expects him to
return honme to. His hone of record is Alaska. In 20 years of
mlitary service he has never changed his hone of record.
Despite living in six states and one foreign country, he has
al ways mai nt ai ned paper and physical ties to Al aska.

M5. ROSS said that her husband intends to return to Alaska to
live permanently once he retires. Lifetime Al askans and career
mlitary personnel should continue to receive PFDs.

9:29: 23 AM

RI C DAVI DGE, Anchorage, said he holds a nunber of |eadership
positions in veteran organizations in Alaska. The Al aska
Veterans Political Action Conmttee and the Alaska Veteran's
Foundati on have been asking for changes to the PFD status,
especially the ten year rule and the 72 hour rul e because of the
cost of returning Alaska to nmintain resident st at us.
Indications of intent to return should be considered. These
people were Alaskans prior to service and intend to be upon

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2011



their return. The bottom line is; why are there no exenptions
for mlitary service as opposed to nenbers of Congress, their
staff and spouses. At |east, he said, recognize the service and
conm tnent of service nmenbers who intend to return. H's son
spent four years active duty in lraqg as well as 8 years mlitary
service. A nunber of tines he had to assist his son to return to
Al aska for the 78 hour requirenent.

9:32:10 AM
LI SA KIRSCH, Attorney, Legislative Legal Services, said she was
avai | abl e for questions.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked her to tal k about her |egal analysis of
the bill.

M5. KIRSCH said she couldn't really add nuch to what M. Poag
said. The crux of the problem is the three year residency
requirenent within the bill. This splits a class of residents
into two groups, which creates an equal protection problem

9:34: 16 AM

CHAIR WELECHOWSKI said he did not intend to nove the bill
today; he wants to work through the constitutional issues. There
was sone very conpelling testinony. Perhaps home of record could
be included as an indication of eligibility.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if this would automatically nmake the
mlitary nmenbers' children eligible.

9:35:45 AM
M5. BITNEY said yes, the children are eligible if the mlitary
menber is the sponsor.

CHAI R W ELECHOMNSKI asked her to comment on the issue of "hone of
record.”

M5. BITNEY responded any declaration of residency other than
Al aska automatically disqualifies the applicant.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if there has been any constitutional
analysis of an exenption for those out of state while working
for a private conpany.

M5. BITNEY answered it would not be considered an allowable

absence if soneone was out of state for private enploynent
pur poses.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 7, 2011



SENATOR KOOKESH said the distinction is that mlitary personne
are told where to |ive.

MS. BI TNEY answered that was essentially correct.

9:38:17 AM

CHAIR WELECHOWNSKI closed public testinmony and announced he
woul d hold SB 117 in commttee.

HCR 7- DECORATI ON OF HONOR

9: 38: 57 AM

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI announced t he next order of business would be
HCR 7, which would award the Al aska Declaration of Honor to
certain nmenbers of the mlitary. The award was created in 2007
to honor Al askans who have nmade the ultimate sacrifice and | ost
their lives while serving the nation. In 2009 the Joint Arned
Services Committee organized a cerenony in Anchorage to
recognize the nore than 170 Al askans since statehood who have
been killed while serving in the arnmed forces. He thanked
Representative Saddl er for bringing forward this year's
resol ution.

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER, sponsor of HCR 7, said the
Decl aration of Honor was created in 2007. A nedal is awarded
post humously to mlitary service nenbers either from Al aska or
depl oyed while stationed in Al aska who were killed in action or
in support of conbat action. The legislature nust authorize this
by resolution. To date a total of 177 have been awarded. HCR 7
will award another 30 nedals to service nenbers and authorize
their famlies to receive them Wile it is his hope to never
have to award this nedal again, everyone knows that freedom is
not free.

9:41: 05 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWEKI cl osed public testinony.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked the sponsor if he had conferred with
the Departnent of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs for the nanes
and correct spellings.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER answer ed yes.
SENATOR PASKVAN noved to report HCR 7 from the Senate State
Affairs Standing Commttee with individual recomendations and

attached fiscal note(s). There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2011



9:43: 06 AM
At - ease.

HB  3- REQUI REMENTS FOR DRI VER S LI CENSE

9:46: 57 AM

CHAI R W ELECHOABKI announced the next order of business would be
HB 3, which would enable the Departnent of Mtor Vehicles (DW)
to issue driver's licenses for less than the statutory five
years to certain individuals.

9:47: 08 AM
REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN, sponsor of HB 3, said this bill has the
same bill nunber as legislation that was proposed |ast session

but the bills thenmselves are very different. Under current
statute, Alaska driver's licenses are issued for a period of
five years from your birthday. HB 3 deals only with noncitizen
visitors. Today a noncitizen can be legally in the United States
on a visa that expires tonorrow, but he or she can get an Al aska
driver's license that lasts five years. HB 3 pernmts the DW to
issue a driver's license for less than five years so that a
noncitizen visitor's driver's license expires when his or her
Vi sa expires.

9:49: 44 AM

THOVAS REI KER, staff to Representative Lynn, said determ ning
how | ong a foreign national can stay in the US is the purview of
Honel and Security. This would allow the DW to issue a driver's
license for less than five years. The foreign national's |icense
would expire on the sane day their legal presence in the US
expires. If their stay is indefinite, he or she would have to
renew their driver's license each year. The sponsor did not want
the bill to be overly burdensone, so people would be allowed to
renew by mail for up to five years. Docunentation requirenents
remai n unchanged. HB 3 has 19 co-sponsors and passed the House
with a vote of 33-2.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked what other forns of identification a |egal
immgrant arriving in the US would have.

MR. REI KER said he was not sure. The sponsor did not want to put
anything in bill requiring people to show docunentation. That is
how things are currently structured. People are show ng
i mm gration docunents.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2011



SENATOR PASKVAN asked if a legal immgrant would have a visa,
passport or sonething official when they enter the country,

9: 53: 04 AM

MR. REIKER answered the definition of a legal immgrant is
soneone who has sone type of docunentation from immgration
services. If the person doesn't have anything, DW wll verify

by tel ephone.

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI questioned whether this turns DW into a de
facto immgration authority, which is the responsibility of the
f ederal governnment.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said this is talking about visitors, not
i mm grants or undocunmented workers. Immgration is a whole other
issue. Under the bill, a visitor who has indeterm nate status
woul d be issued a |license for one year at a tine. There would be
no additional fee for up to five years.

9:56: 25 AM
REPRESENTATI VE  LYNN  stressed t hat this is a sinple,
straightforward bill.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked what the basis of bill was. Nornmally
| egislators respond to conplaints from their constituents or
others that a problem exists and needs to be corrected.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said the intent is to have the [expiration
date] on the state-issued driver's license match the [expiration
date] on the visa or other federal docunent. There are probably
sonme honel and security aspects.

9:57: 53 AM
SENATOR KOOKESH asked what pronmpted him to introduce the
| egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered people are staying in Al aska and
driving after their visas have expired. There are aspects of
homel and security. It's inportant to know who is driving in the
st at e.

SENATOR KOOKESH sai d he understands that, but is trying to find
out who raised the issue.

9:58: 44 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered no one raised it as a problem

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- April 7, 2011



MR. REIKER said there currently is a statutory barrier to DW
issuing a driver's license for less than five years. Part of the
inpetus is a statutory change.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked if DW said there is a problem

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN answered no; he went to the DW, eight years
ago.

SENATOR PASKVAN said the citizens of Al aska expect that anyone
going to the DW for a license has to pass a driver's test. If
he or she passes, that would seem that DW has acconplished its
function. He asked if this is a different test that the
appl i cant has to pass.

10: 00: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said no, it is only about the expiration
date for a driver's license. Mst states have a period of tine
in which to obtain a new license. Wen you nove to Al aska, you
have a certain tinme to change your previous license to an Al aska
license. The expiration date would be for the period of tine you
are allowed to be here.

MR. REIKER said it is a test that people already have to pass
when they apply for a driver's license. This only changes the
expiration date of the driver's license. It is a situation
peopl e are already facing.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the state ID card issued by DW is
currently limted to the duration of a person's |egal stay.

MR. REI KER answered not right now, but DW does not feel there
needs to be a statutory change to inplement that change.
However, DW's general policy is to have the sane rules for both
the state ID card and the state driver's |icense.

10: 02: 53 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if enployers use the driver's license for
identification, and if it's construed to be a representation of
| egal presence in the country.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said presumably soneone who has an Al aska
driver's license has a legal right to be here.

SENATOR G ESSEL said she didn't believe a Social Security nunber

is on state |ID cards. She asked what on a driver's I|icense
identifies what | egal presence the person has.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 7, 2011



MR. REIKER said in the real world a driver's license is a key
that opens many gates. People accept it as a governnment issued
| D. Enployers and | aw enforcenment will take it at face val ue.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN pointed out that nothing on a |license shows
resi dency st at us.

10: 05: 07 AM
SENATOR KOCOKESH asked if the sponsor expects the DW to verify a
person's legal status. That isn't their job.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said DW would only |look at the expiration
date. This shows if a person is driving legally.

CHAIR WELECHOWSKI noted that a few people were signed up to
testify.

10: 06: 28 AM

KERRY HENNINGS, Driver's Licensing Mnager, Division of Mtor
Vehicles (DW), Departnment of Administration (DOA), said the
proposed bill allows DW to pronulgate regulations. It has a
zero fiscal note and would not inpact existing procedures.
Currently the DW requires an individual to provide proof of
| egal name, date of birth, Social Security nunber if one exists,
and residence address. For foreign nationals there is usually a
passport acconpanied by a visa. There would not be a dramatic
inpact to staff. DW would sinply issue the license with the
visa expiration date. DW would continue to honor notification
that a person's |l egal stay has been extended.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if this addresses those that are legally
in the country.

M5. HENNI NGS answered correct.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if there is any problem with a visitor's
capacity to drive that's connected to their legal status for
being in the country.

M5. HENNI NGS answer ed no.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked why, if they've passed the test, a foreign

national's license wouldn't be equal to any other person's
license that's issued.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- April 7, 2011



M5. HENNI NGS said there would be no difference in the docunent.
It would only be a natter of the expiration date changi ng.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if an individual who applies for a job in
the private sector is now required to present tw fornms of
i dentification.

M5. HENNINGS replied she believes that's true. DW sells a |ot
of driving records for enploynent application purposes, she
added.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if in addition to a driver's license, a
person needs to show a Social Security card or passport.

M5. HENNI NGS said she believes enployers are required to verify
Soci al Security nunbers.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked for confirmation that an enployer would
not be m sled by anyone presenting a driver's license.

M5. HENNI NGS responded the Social Security nunber is not printed
on the ID card or driver's license so that would be an indicator
for an enployer of a Social Security nunber.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if that would |ead the private enployer to
understand that the driver's license does not indicate |egal
status in the US.

M5. HENNINGS agreed it would not be an indicator of |egal
presence.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked how nany illegal immgrants may be
applying for driver's licenses in Al aska.

M5. HENNI NGS said she had no idea. Wthout proper docunentation
DW deni es the application.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if there a problemwi thin DW with respect
to this issue.

10: 12: 46 AM

M5. HEMM NGS replied there is no problem wthout proper
docunentati on DW cannot issue either a driver's license or |ID
card.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI asked how many people present visas to DW
for identification.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 7, 2011



M5. HENNINGS replied the division doesn't keep those nunbers,
but through her experience she assunes about 10 percent. Many
sumer visitors apply for driver's licenses.

CHAI R W ELECHONSKI asked how many visitors would be required to
reapply under this bill.

M5. HENNINGS answered nobst are summer visitors, and are not
likely to reapply under this bill for a renewal

10: 14: 24 AM
SENATOR KOOKESH questioned why a visitor would cone to Al aska
and get a driver's |icense.

10: 15: 14 AM

M5. HEMM NGS answered people from the Lower 48 comng to Al aska
on vacation are not surrendering their licenses. It is people
from overseas wth passports and visas, who have an
international driver's license. |If they don't, in private
business practice there is concern about i nsurance and

liability. So they ask for docunmentation to legally drive in our
state.

10: 16: 36 AM
SENATOR KOOKESH asked if [licenses from another country are
recogni zed in Al aska.

M5. HENNI NGS answered the foreign |icense needs to be translated
into the form of an international |icense. Some visitors do
that; sone do not.

SENATOR KOOKESH asked if a French citizen could rent a vehicle
in Alaska using his or her French driver's license.

M5. HENNINGS responded it is up to the individual rental
comnpany.

CHAI R W ELECHOWSKI announced he would |imt public testinony to
three m nutes a person.

ROBI N BRONEN, Al aska Immgration Justice Project, said this is
not a sinplistic piece of legislation. She has worked wth
immgrants and refugees since 1994. Immgration law is one of
the nost conplex areas of law. This |egislation makes absol utely
no sense in terns of inmgration status. She also noted that no
one has conpl ai ned about this issue, so what is the purpose.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- April 7, 2011



10: 19: 26 AM

She has worked as an attorney with donestic violence victins
since 1988. At the Inmigration Justice Project they work wth
approximately 200 imm grant victins of violence every year. This
| egislation would harm them and prevent them from getting the
necessary identification to |eave an abusive rel ationship. Most
of their clients are married to US citizens who fail to docunent
their immgration status. These victins reside in places like
Unal aska, Barrow, and Ketchikan. This would trap them in those
communities wthout protection. This legislation would further
harm donesti c vi ol ence victins.

10: 21: 07 AM

JOHN HI RST, testifying on his own behalf, said he is a UK who
married a US citizen and is now a permanent resident of the US.
Last year he went to the DW in Anchorage three separate tines
to get his Alaska driver's license. Each tinme, staff wanted to
see his visa and proof of residence before he was allowed to
apply. He did not have a visa or an 1-94 card. DW staff was
rude, intimdating, and disrespectful. Under the proposed bill
he would not be allowed an Alaska driver's |license. DW staff
should not be meking decisions regarding the legality of a
person's immgration status. Legal inmgrants do not always have
visas. DW 1is asking for proof, but he had to surrender his
Washi ngton state |icense.

10: 23: 02 AM

JASON BAUMETZ, testifying on his own behalf, said he is an
immgration attorney in Anchorage and works at the Al aska
| Mm gration Justice project. He expressed concern that the bill
achieves nothing for the people of the state and questioned the
wi sdom of burdening lawful immgrants with yearly renewals. He
pointed out that nothing in the bill limts yearly renewals to
non-immgrants. Furthernore, he said, the bill m sconprehends
the availability of proof of immgration status. Sonetines
people routinely don't get proof. He said he does not have faith
in the information received from Honeland Security or United
States Custonms and Inmgration Service, because it is often
wWr ong.

10: 25: 15 AM

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director, Anerican CGvil Liberties
Union (ACLU) of Alaska, said the bill raises concern about
constitutional rights and civil liberties. Courts have | ooked at
the issue of burdening immgrants with a different |icense that
has less validity or less length of tinme than that of a US

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2011



citizen. Although immgrants are not citizens they are covered
under the equal protection clause. In certain circunstances the
courts wll allow differential treatment if there is a
justifiable reason. This puts a significant burden on | aw ul
immgrants; courts could |ook askance at this. ACLU is
protecting the rights of those who cannot protect their own. By
doing this it protects the rights of all Al askans.

10: 27: 18 AM
CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI cl osed public testinony.

REP LYNN said his staff would respond to the testinony.

MR. REIKER said 30 other states and the District of Colunbia
al ready have this provision in current law. It has never been
chal l enged successfully in a federal court on constitutional
grounds. It creates a situation where Alaska is a state that is

nore attractive to unlawful inmmgrants. It's an issue. All
testifiers wer e speaki ng about t he current si tuation.
Undocunmented workers already <can't get driver's |licenses.

Donestic violence and sexual assault victins are already barred
if they are undocunent ed.

He stressed that nothing in the bill precludes |egal residents
from renewing or obtaining a license. The concern is not wth
illegal immgrants; it is with the expiration date of a driver's
license. The concern is that soneone would overstay his or her
aut hori zed | ength of st ay. I ndefinite does not mean
indeterminate or in perpetuity. DW would accept any form of
docunentation. Their Al aska contact for inmgration services
says they are trying to use the "term duration of status,"”
rather than "indefinite.”

CHAI R W ELECHOWBKI announced he would hold HB 3 in commttee.

10: 31: 23 AM

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Wel echowski adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting at 10:31 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2011



